
 

JANUARY 2022
BOARD OF
TRUSTEES PACKET

K E N T  D I S T R I C T
L I B R A R Y

1



DRAFT 

                    *        Requires Action 
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 
          be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.” 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Agenda 

 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service & Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Dr NE, Comstock Park, MI, 49321 

or via teleconference  

 DATE & TIME  

Thursday, January 20, 2022 at 4:30 PM. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. INTRODUCTION OF THE NEW KDL BOARD MEMBER  

Nicole Lintemuth: Representing the Lowell Area 

4. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: December 16, 2021 Open & Closed Sessions 

C. Lakeland Library Cooperative Report: December 9, 2021 

5. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS  
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

7. FINANCE REPORTS – December 2021* 
 

8. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – December 2021 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

A. KPI Review 
B. Conflict of Interest Statements and Board Code of Ethics 

C. 2022 Credit Card Agreement 

D. Policy Manual Review: Section 4.3.1- Photography and Videography* First Reading 
E. Memorandum of Understanding - Krause Branch Expansion* 

F. Resolution: Billing Rate for Foster Swift Legal Services*   Roll Call  
G. Resolution: eRate Amendment*      Roll Call  
H. 4th Quarter Strategic Plan Update 

I. Executive Director’s Evaluation* 

10. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

13. MEETING DATES 

Next Regular Meeting: Thursday, February 17, 2022 – KDL Cascade Branch, 4:30 PM 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT*  

2



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 LOCATION 

 Service + Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Drive, Comstock Park, MI 49321 & teleconference. 

 DATE + TIME  

Thursday, December 16, 2021 at 4:30 PM.  

BOARD PRESENT: Shirley Bruursema, Peter Dykhuis, Andrew Erlewein, Sheri Gilreath-Watts, Charles 

Myers, Tom Noreen, Caitie S. Oliver and Penny Weller 
 
BOARD ABSENT: None. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Cheryl Cammenga, Jaci Cooper, Jennifer DeVault, Randy Goble, Elvia Myers, Kurt 
Stevens, Brian Mortimore, Christine Mwangi, Lance Werner and Emily Whelan 

 

GUESTS PRESENT: Bill Brinkman  
 

.. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Bruursema called the meeting to order at 4:33 PM. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: November 18, 2021  

Motion: Mr. Noreen moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller.   

RESULT: Motion carried.  

 

4. REGIONAL MANAGER UPDATE  

• Regional Manager I Cheryl Cammenga gave the following updates from Gaines (GNS) and 

Kentwood (KWD) Branches:  

 
  During the past year: 

o Both branches participated in Lunches to Go with Feeding America. 
o Storytimes resumed, with participation numbers reaching almost pre-pandemic 

numbers in the fall. 

o New displays and merchandizing standards from the Circulation Moonshot project 

were implemented and are still heavily in the works. 

3



 

o Curbside remained a popular option among patrons and the 24/7 pickup lockers 
at Kentwood increased in popularity. 

o The Kentwood Branch partnered with the City of Kentwood to be the central 

location for a community food pantry. City staff maintain and stock the pantry 
shelves in the library lobby once a week, as well as branch staff, when necessary. 

o Both Kentwood and Gaines have struggled with staff turnover and are still in the 
process of filling positions. 

o Each branch is slowly making gains on circulation. Compared to 2019, both 
Kentwood and Gaines circulation is down 19 and 21 percent, respectively.  

In 2022:  

o Gaines and Kentwood’s goal is to get new and returning users back to the 
branches by concentrating efforts on Outreach to seniors, recent immigrants, and 

area school families. 

o Branch Outreach and Programming Specialist Hennie Vaandrager and Regional 

Manager I Cheryl Cammenga have joined the Community School Leadership 

Team, comprised of school professionals and organizations serving the 
underserved, homeless and refugee students and their families. They are building 
relationships and partnerships with organizations such as the Refugee Education 

Center and the Woodfield Apartments after school recreation program. 

o With schools currently not allowing visitors into the classrooms, branch staff have 
created online book talks for the classroom. The Kentwood Friends of the Library 
have also purchased books for the students. 

 

5. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – Plainfield Township Representative Bill Brinkman 

shared that Plainfield Township is doing its best to survive the pandemic, that the township 

passed the budget at the last meeting, and that another grant has been requested for the Grand 

River Park Expansion. 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS** – None. 

 

7. FINANCE REPORTS – November 2021* 

Finance Manager Emily Whalen gave a brief overview of the year-to-date financials:  

• Cash is slightly down from last year—Approximately $1.1M less than last year.  

• KDL has received 100% of budgeted annual revenues and has spent 81% budgeted 

expenditures. (With the Service Center's next shipment of furniture delayed until the end of 

January, expenditures can only be accounted for when delivered.) 

• The two largest checks written for the month of November were to Sirsidynix in the amount 
of $136K for the ILS and to Priority Health in the amount of $126K for employee healthcare.  

• There was one voided check for a replacement check that was lost. 

• The Board asked questions and the Finance Manager responded.  

Motion: Mr. Erlewein moved to receive and file the November 2021 finance reports as 

presented. 

Support: Supported by Mr. Myers.  

4



 

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

8. LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE REPORT 

Chair Bruursema gave the following update on LLC New Business: 

•  In the past 18 months, the City of Rockford, Algoma, Cannon, and Courtland Townships 

have been exploring the possibility of pulling out of the Kent District Library system and 

establishing their own independent library district. Lakeland provided statistics and 

reports to both parties regarding the financial impact on Lakeland should this 

separation from KDL take place. If the Lakeland Board were to accept Rockford and the 

neighboring townships as an independent member, KDL would withdraw from 

Lakeland and restrict borrowing to only KDL patrons. This would also result in a 

substantial budget reduction at Lakeland that will not be made up by state aid and 

other operating fees. On December 8, the townships held a public meeting in Rockford 

that was attended by over 300 residents. Approximately 70 residents spoke out against 

the separation. The LLC Board agreed to form an ad-hoc committee to address this 

issue and to support KDL.  

 

9. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – November 2021 

• Executive Director Lance Werner shared that The Kent District Library won Urban 

Library Council’s award for Top Innovator in Institutional Change and Strategic 

Management for the Project Management Office: Strategy and ROI. 

• The Library also received honorable mentions for: 

o KDL’s Community Collaboration with Affinity Mentoring for Anti-Racism, 

Equity, Diversity and Inclusion 

o A Multimedia Community Partnership for Communicating the Library’s Value 

with “Wimee’s Words.” 

o KDL Multiple Organization Partnership Puertas Abiertas 

o KDL's Mama Bear & Baby Cubs Support Group 

• Mr. Werner thanked Caitie Oliver for her dedication to the KDL Board of Trustees and to 

the KDL Family.  

 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS.  

A. 2022 Election of Officers*  
Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to appoint Mr. Myers as KDL Board of Trustees Chair, Ms. 

Weller as Vice-Chair, Mr. Erlewein as Treasurer and Ms. Gilreath Watts as secretary for 
the 2022 calendar year.  
Support: Supported by Mr. Erlewein. Ms. Oliver abstained. 

RESULT: Motion carried.  
 

B. 2022 Trustee Board Assignments*  
Chair Bruursema initiated the annual trustee board assignment discussion to allow 

trustees and opportunity to express their desire to depart or join an advisory or the 
Lakeland Cooperative Board.  

5



 

Motion: Mr. Noreen moved to reappoint Ms. Weller & nominate Ms. Bruursema to serve 
as KDL Board representatives on the 2022 KDL Alliance of Friends, to reappoint Mr. 

Myers and Mr. Erlewein to serve as KDL Board representatives on the 2022 KDL Pension 

Board, and to reappoint Ms. Bruursema to serve as a KDL Board representative on the 
2022 Lakeland Library Cooperative Board.  

Support:  Supported by Ms. Weller.  
RESULT: Motion carried.  
 

C. 2021 KDL Year in Review  

Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Cooper shares 2021 KDL Year in Review 
Presentation as a reflection of the Amazing Impact KDL has done in the Community.  
The Board asked staff questions and the staff responded.  

 
D. Policy Manual – Section 6: Personnel – First Reading* 

Human Resources and Organizational Development Brian Mortimore discussed that there 

were no changes to the Policy Manual and gave clarification to the Drug testing 
requirements.  
Motion: Ms. Oliver moved to approve the Policy Manual – Section 6: Personnel as 

presented.     
Support: Supported by Mr. Noreen.  

       RESULT: Motion Carried 6-2.  
 

11. LIASON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – None. 

 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS** – None. 

 

13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Ms. Bruursema – Chair Bruursema shared the honor of being the Chair of the KDL Board of 

Trustees. She thanked Ms. Oliver for her dedication to the Library and that she enjoyed visiting 

all 20 locations this week in KDL Holiday Gift distribution. 

 

Mr. Erlewein – Mr. Erlewein thanks the KDL Board for their representation in the Rockford 

Meeting regarding Krause Memorial and wishes everyone a Merry Christmas.  

 

Mr. Dykhuis – Mr. Dykhuis shares his gratitude for working with Ms. Oliver and he is delighted 

in the Grandville Branch having all its furniture in except for WonderKnook. 

 

Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Ms. Gilreath-Watts shared that she is going to miss Ms. Oliver and that she 

has appreciated all of her hard work and dedication to the board. Ms. Gilreath-Watts attended 

the Rockford meeting and enjoyed hearing the impressive stories that everyone shared. She 

appreciates and respects the leadership that Ms. Bruursema brought to the KDL Board. 

 

Mr. Myers – Mr. Myers thanked KDL Board Chair Shirley Bruursema for her service and Ms. Oliver 

for all her hard work and support on the board. Lastly, he wished everyone a Merry Christmas 

and Happy Holidays.  

6



 

 

Mr. Noreen – Mr. Noreen thanked KDL Board Chair Shirley Bruursema for all of her institutional 

knowledge and sends his well wishes to Ms. Oliver in her next endeavor. He also thanked the 

KDL team for their consistent efforts in making KDL great.  He wished everyone a Merry 

Christmas and Happy New Year’s.  

 

Ms. Oliver – Ms. Oliver has had great passion for all of the work she did as a KDL Board Trustee 

and has enjoyed the dramatic timeframe of the county. She has found so much pride in 

supporting the Constitution and the First Amendment.  

 

Ms. Weller – Ms. Weller shared her sadness over news of Regional Manager I Dawn Lewis’ 

retirement and her tremendous impact on KDL, stating that Dawn will be deeply missed. Ms. 

Weller acknowledged Executive Assistant Elvia Myers for helping with the KDL Friends Alliance 

and wishes everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.  

 

14. MEETING DATES  

Regular Meeting: Thursday, January 20, 2022 – Kent District Library Service and Meeting Center 

or via teleconference, 4:30 PM.  

 

15. CLOSED SESSION – Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation   

Motion: Mr. Noreen moved at 6:38 PM to meet in a closed session pursuant to section 8(a) of 

the Open Meeting Act for the purpose of conducting the Executive Director’s performance 

evaluation.   

Support: Supported by Ms. Oliver 
Mr. Bruursema – Yes Mr. Dykhuis – Yes Mr. Erlewein – Yes Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Yes 

Mr. Myers – Yes  Mr. Noreen – Yes  Ms. Weller –Yes  Ms. Oliver – Yes 

RESULT: Motion Carried 8-0.  

 

Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to adjourn the closed session and resume the Regular Board 

Meeting at 7:52 PM.  

Support: Supported by Mr. Erlewein.  

 

16. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S ANNUAL PERFORMANCE  

Chair Bruursema noted that the KDL Board discussed Executive Director Werner’s performance 

and proposed a salary increase for 2022.  

Motion: Ms. Weller moved to approve Executive Director’s salary increase for 2022. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Oliver.  

Motion: Motion carried.  

 

The KDL Board shared their gratitude towards Executive Director Werner for his service and 

noted that he has had a successful year within the organization and local community, 

considering all of the obstacles. Executive Director Werner shared his appreciation for the 

Board’s decision.  

7



 

 

17. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion: Ms. Weller for adjournment at 7:58 PM. 

Support: Supported by Mr. Myers.  

RESULT: Motion carried.  

 

  

 Lance Werner, KDL Executive Director  

8



1 

LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 
BOARD MINUTES – Unofficial 

Thursday, December 9, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. 
Kent District Library Service Center 

 
Present: Dale Parus, Karen McKinnon, Diane Kooiker, Shirley Bruursema, Peggy Hemerling, John 

McNaughton, Lance Werner, Kelly Richards 

Staff Present: Carol Dawe and Sheryl VanderWagen  

Absent: Maggie McKeithan 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: The meeting was called to order at 9:36 a.m. by Dale Parus. 

There were 23 additional participants. 

 a)  Introduce New Members: Matthew Lubbers-Moore is the new director at Fruitport District 
Library 
2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Lance Werner moved, supported by John McNaughton, to approve the 

agenda as presented - motion carried. 

3) QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS: None 

4) PUBLIC COMMENTS: Brian Mortimore (KDL) spoke about the meeting in Rockford regarding the 

Rockford branch. He was proud of the number of people who attended and spoke in support of KDL 

and particularly Heather Wood-Gramza who spoke as a local resident at the meeting.  Lance Werner 

introduced Jennifer DeVault, KDL’s new Director of Operations. 

5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Peggy Hemerling moved, supported by Shirley Bruursema, to approve 

the board minutes from November 11, 2021, as presented – motion carried. 

6) FINANCIAL REPORT: 

a) November Financials and Check Register: Motion by Lance Werner, supported by Karen 

McKinnon to approve the November financial report and check register as presented – motion 

carried. 

7) PRESIDENT’S REPORT: None 

8) COOPERATIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Carol Dawe did not have anything to add to her written 

report.  She reported that work on the ARPA grant is moving forward.  The committee has a meeting 

next Tuesday. 

9) COUNCIL/COMMITTEE REPORTS 

10) NEW BUSINESS 
a) Kent District Library and Krause Memorial Library: Lance Werner provided background 

information regarding the current situation.  In the past 18 months,  the City of Rockford, Algoma, 

Cannon, and Courtland Townships have been exploring pulling out of KDL and establishing an 

independent library district largely because they want KDL to build a new or expand the existing 

library building. Lakeland provided statistics and reports to both parties regarding the financial 

impact on Lakeland should this separation from KDL take place.  If the Lakeland Board were to 

accept Rockford and the neighboring townships as an independent member, KDL would withdraw 

from Lakeland and restrict borrowing to only KDL patrons. This would also result in a substantial 

budget reduction at Lakeland that could not be made up by revenue from state aid and operating 

fees from those 4 units of government that would form the new district library in Rockford. On 

December 8th, there was a public meeting in Rockford that was attended by over 300 residents. 

Approximately 70 residents spoke out against the separation.  The LLC Board agreed to form an 

ad-hoc committee to address this issue and support KDL.    

11) PUBLIC COMMENTS: Heather Wood-Gramza reported that Howard Miller Library will hold an open 

house to showcase their new Tovertofel (Magic Table) that projects images on the floor and other 

surfaces, allowing people with cognitive differences to interact with them.  They have been using it 

with staff but will soon make it available for the public. Amber McLain reported the results of the 

9



Lakeland Library Cooperative Unofficial Board Minutes for December 9, 2021 

2 

 

recent book challenge at Patmos Library.  She has a 24-page packet for the book, Gender Queer by 

Maia Kobabe that she will share if there are challenges to this book at other libraries. At Patmos, the 

book will become part of the professional collection but will be available to patrons for checkout. She 

noted there are several opportunities in the coming weeks to learn more about the uptick in 

challenges to library materials. She will send the dates and times out on email. 

 
12) BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

John McNaughton reported that Jessica Bratt is the new Assistant Director at the Grand Rapids Public 

Library. 

 

Karen McKinnon reported that work is progressing on the addition.  She is also seeking a new youth 

services staff member at Leighton. 

 

Peggy Hemerling thanked the Lakeland staff for getting things done and picking up the slack when 

needed.  She especially, thanked Terry Cross for his efforts.   

 

Shirley Bruursema reported that she conducted a trustee training session with Clare Membiela from the 

Library of Michigan on December 6.  There were 49 trustees in attendance.  They will repeat the program 

on December 13, 6:00 – 7:30 p.m.  She will deliver holiday gift baskets to the staff at each of the KDL 

branches in the coming week. 

 

Kelly Richards noted that this is his last meeting and that he will be departing for Philadelphia next month. 

He noted that he will miss everyone and encouraged us to support each other as new issues continue to 

crop up.  

 

13) NEXT MEETING: Thursday, January 13, 2022, 9:30 a.m. at Kent District Library Service Center. 

14) ADJOURNMENT: Karen McKinnon, supported by Peggy Hemerling moved to adjourn at 10:35 a.m. - 

motion carried. 

 
Respectfully submitted by, 

Sheryl VanderWagen 

10



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended December 31

 

2021 2020
Account Rate Amount Rate Amount

0.000% $2,422,573.14 0.000% $4,490,658.10
0.010% $1,260,709.67 0.009% $1,800,663.80
0.632% $55,888.54 0.728% $56,469.64

$11,898,823.00 0.000% $11,912,177.00
$15,637,994.35 $18,259,968.54

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Account
Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account
Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account
*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 24.59%

Investment Account
9.86%

Pooled Funds .31%

Atlanta Capital 65.24%  

Checking Account 15.49%     

Investment Account
8.06%

Pooled Funds .36%

Atlanta Capital 76.09%  

11



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended December 31

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount
2020 Actual 2020 YTD Revenues 97.1%
2021 Actual 2021 YTD Revenues 100.3%
2021 Budgeted

2020 YTD Expenditures 89.8%
Expenditures 2021 YTD Expenditures 88.2%
2020 Actual  
2021 Actual
2021 Budgeted 30,466,272$                   

25,676,901$                   
27,092,950$                   
27,025,126$                   

25,488,002$                   
26,879,848$                   

$22

$23

$24

$25

$26

$27

$28

$29

$30

$31

2020
Actual

2021
Actual

2021
Budgeted

2020
Actual

2021
Actual

2021
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

102%

2020 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Revenues 2020 YTD Expenditures 2021 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2020
Actual

2021       Actual 2021 Budgeted 2020       Actual 2021       Actual 2021 Budgeted

Mi
llio

ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2020 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Revenues 2020 YTD Expenditures 2021 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



Director's Report
The following question was asked: Please give the top 2-3

winter events that patrons (and staff!) get most excited for at
your branch, along with a few goals you have set for/with your

team for the year 2022. 

DECEMBER 2021

INSIDE THIS QUARTER'S
ISSUE:

Alpine, Tyrone + Walker
The Alto and Englehardt branches are looking

forward to having their first indoor and in-person

Adult Programming Beyond Books discussion since

March 2019. The Englehardt Branch will be hosting

“Chronic Stress and Management” on January 12 at

6:30 PM in addition to “Fandom Fun Trivia” on

February 8 at 6:00 PM. The Alto Branch will be hosting

“Michigan Mushrooms” on January 27 and

“Watercolors” on February 17, both of which will take

place at 6:30 PM. The Englehardt Branch is heavily

invested in many of the senior care facilities in

Lowell. This month, visits will begin at Lowell’s

newest development, Maple Ridge Manor, and staff

are looking forward to welcoming new patrons and

building new relationships. 

 

While not exactly a new program, both branches

continue to enjoy the number of 1,000 Books Before

Kindergarten (1KBK) and Mission: Read! completers.

Each branch’s major goal for 2022 is to try and re-

establish the library’s pre-COVID role in the

community and in our patrons’ daily routine. This

includes continuing to grow attendance at storytime

and getting back into the schools. Though the library

continues to provide virtual book talks and book

drop-offs, nothing can replace a face-to-face

connection. With this in mind, staff look forward to

putting extra effort into “March is Reading Month.” 

In late winter, our patrons look forward to two

perennial favorite programs: The Heart to Heart Craft

Party, where younger kids enjoy making holiday-

themed crafts, and the Anti-Valentine's Day Bash,

where teens gather together with their peers to poke

good-natured fun. The Heart to Heart Craft Party will

be held at Walker on February 8 at 10:00 AM, at

Tyrone on February 9 at 3:30 PM and at Alpine on

February 9 at 6:30 PM. The Anti-Valentine's Day Bash

will take place at Walker on February 9 at 6:30 PM and

at Tyrone on February 15 at 3:30 PM. 

In 2022, all three branches aim to dive back into

outreach by focusing on connecting with schools,

communities, the underserved and seniors. All

branches will continue providing virtual outreach to

places where in-person outreach is not permitted.

The regional team has also formed a committee with

the goal and mission of lifting each other up with

small acts of kindness. The team will have a

brainstorming session on January 12 to generate

ideas and plan for a year of kindness and fun

Alto + Engelhardt 

25



Byron + Grandville 
At both branches, staff are looking forward to doing

standard programming again after taking a break

for the holidays. At Grandville, staff are trying out a

new program called “Crafts and Coffee,” a drop-in

program for parents to drink a hot beverage and

socialize with other parents while their kids do a

special craft and/or play in the children’s area. This

started in the first week of January and has been

hugely popular thus far. On February 25, the

Michigan Sled Dogs will also come visit the branch,

which is always fun for everyone involved. At Byron,

patrons are always so excited for storytime that any

additional programming is not usually in high

demand. In fact, extra storytime slots had to be

added to the roster in the middle of last season just

to meet demand. Nevertheless, one special

program that remains a Byron favorite is the

upcoming Heart to Heart craft party in February.  

 

As far as the year goes, each branch has largely

resumed regular outreach efforts, but staff are

looking forward to getting even more involved as

the Library reconnects with schools. Staff are also

always on the look-out for new ways to engage with

the community and make the library even more

engrained in the community fabric. 

Caledonia + Cascade
This past year, the Cascade Branch partnered with

Kent ISD Bright Beginnings to host a “Winter

Playdate” on December 15. This station-style

program served over 100 preschoolers, toddlers and

babies with a morning of process art and other

simple activities. Other popular events included the

Fantasy Festival on December 28 and “Meet the Sled

Dogs” on January 15 at 10:00 AM. Similarly, “Ready

for Reindeer” is always a winter favorite at Caledonia,

giving patrons an opportunity to see these kind and

gentle animals up close. Caledonia also held a

Fantasy Festival on December 29 and patrons went

all out when it came to participation. This branch

hopes for a similarly enthusiastic turn out when they

host laser tag on January 18 at 5:00 PM. The beauty

of this program is that it allows teens to explore the

library in a whole new way—With lasers! 

 

Looking ahead to 2022, Cascade and Caledonia staff

will aim to make the library experience more

accessible to new users and will think more

creatively about outreach to the community. 

26



Comstock Park + Plainfield 

Over the winter holiday, patrons came in droves to

both the Comstock Park and Plainfield branch

locations for a chance to spot some of Santa’s very

own reindeer. Comstock Park welcomed over 400

people to the event and Plainfield well over 500

people. In addition to reindeer, this popular event

also featured free hot chocolate and crafts.

Plainfield even welcomed the Northview High

School Jazz Band for some live entertainment. It

was an incredible experience to accommodate

literally crowds of people back into the branches.

Special thank you to Branch Outreach and

Programming Specialists Susan Erhardt, Jackie Boss

and Laura DeJong for the massive amount of effort

that went into organizing these events. 

For 2022, the branches look forward to being more

active in outreach. Branch Librarian Dave Shaw has

been building a relationship with the Ambrose

Retirement Village in Plainfield. Meanwhile, Branch

Librarian Lisa Rodkey and Youth Paraprofessional

Leigh Verburg are committed to getting more in touch

with York Creek Apartments in Comstock Park.  What

all staff members say they’ve missed the most is being

back in the schools, though all librarians are working

to maintain close contact with local teachers and are

visiting as much as possible. Still, due to ongoing

COVID-19 concerns, many schools are simply not ready

yet to welcome back volunteers. 

27



Outreach +
Programming

DECEMBER 2021

Career Online High School
Diploma

INSIDE THIS QUARTER'S
ISSUE:

KDL joined GSC for a two-session training,

focused on parents and caregivers, to explore

and practice the Five Basics. The amazing

Branch Librarian Sarah Fox was the trainer and

the rest of the team supported the content with

hands-on activities, resources, and a feedback

“harvesting” session, where participants shared

how they apply this knowledge.

For the month of December,  KDL is  celebrating a

graduate! Outreach Specialist of Economic and

Workforce Development Hannah Lewis delivered

some goods to celebrate this amazing student. KDL

also had three new applications and one granted

scholarship and is excited to continue offering this

amazing opportunity.

Great Start Collaborative
Training

Gingerbread Lane 
For the second year KDL provided take home

gingerbread house kits for patrons. Over 2,200

bags were filled with gingerbread house

supplies. These were passed out at every branch

and on Bookmobile stops.

Cascade Township and Caledonia Township

Branches hosted Fantasy Festivals over the

holiday break. A total of 195 patrons attended

the programs exploring crafts and activities

related to the most popular fantasy novels.

Patrons made potions, magical picture frames,

beaded bracelets and more!

Fantasy Festival 

Happy Noon Year
Ten KDL branches hosted Happy Noon Year in-person

on New Year’s Eve. Over 700 patrons attended the

program ringing in the new year at noon.  Families

celebrated with crafts, noisemakers and more.

Rapid Growth Media 
Outreach Specialist of Economic and Workforce

Development Hannah Lewis spoke with Rapid Growth

Media's Tommy Allen about the  interesting facts that

her department does for KDL. Take a look:

https://www.wgvunews.org/the-wgvu-morning-

show/2021-12-09/rapid-growth-media?

fbclid=IwAR3sY6fCt0CElUbbbAR2jPuOj38sGhXHK7DO3

GMWbZ0S5uyl4GwF-58Mh3s

Bookmobile Librarian Kelaine Mish created a  Video to

explain how to install the Rosetta Stone app. The request

for this instructional video came from an outreach efforts

with a local Treetops Collective Organization.  The intent

is for this video to provide helpful information  during

outreach events, and for groups and schools to assist

with language learning. Rosetta Stone also includes the

ability to learn Pashto/ Pashtu and Dari, popular

languages spoken by Afghanistan refugees in West

Michigan.  The Bookmobile team is excited to learn some

phrases to welcome our new neighbors! (Salâm) سلا

Rosetta Stone 

28

https://www.wgvunews.org/the-wgvu-morning-show/2021-12-09/rapid-growth-media?fbclid=IwAR3sY6fCt0CElUbbbAR2jPuOj38sGhXHK7DO3GMWbZ0S5uyl4GwF-58Mh3s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=UsL7MyKkXO4


Gratitude Stories

DECEMBER 2021

Alpine Township Branch 
Found this awesome message in the kids area this week!

Byron Township Branch 
Two patrons came in today, having never been at this

Branch before. They were adults but functioning at a

lower level and seeing E and J books. I assisted with

the self-checkout. After they left, the young man came

back in to thank us for "such a wonderful library with

so many wonderful books". 

A patron has young daughter and joked with staff that

she hit her hold limit. She said that they moved just a

year or two ago from Hudsonville and she just loves

KDL, especially the website. She said it is absolutely

amazing and they are so grateful for it.

Cascade Township Branch 
A lady in my women's group told me she recently

obtained a KDL library card. She explained that she

had never bothered to get one before because she

doesn't have time to read. But, when I led our group

on a tour through our branch awhile back, she

learned that we have iPads, Go Pros, Hot Spots,

Switch consoles, ukuleles, and so many other non-

print ways to help simplify, organize, and enrich life.

She was excited to get started by borrowing an iPad,

and planned on using the library in lots of new ways.

Amy Van Andel Library 
The staff at the Amy Van Andel Library received this

lovely note from Anita: This is a small token of

gratitude for your kindness, generosity, and

compassion as I was studying for my Pediatric

Boards. You were looking out for me and I am happy

to report that I passed my Boards! Thank you for all

that [you] do for our community - it makes a BIG

difference in so many of our lives!

 The holiday decorations at the Amy Van Andel library

celebrated all holidays that bring people together.

Posters celebrating everything from Christmas and

Easter to Ramadan and the 4th of July are displayed.

A family came into the library to get library cards -- it

was their first time visiting. When mom pointed out

to her kids that the display and activity board of

favorite holidays featured Diwali, they were thrilled.

What a great introduction to their public library!

Plainfield Township Branch
Letter written to Branch Outreach and Programming

Specialist Susan Erhardt- On behalf of

Comprehensive Therapy (CTC), I would like to thank

you for making arrangements to host our

Therapeutic play and Learn Groups at the Plainfield

Branch Library. Your staff was very welcoming and

made it easy for us to conduct Play and Learn

Groups. The large open space was great! We are able

to set up server activities for children to explore,

discover and engage. We appreciate the partnership

with KDL and look forward to future opportunities. 

Below is a letter from a teacher of 8th grade students:

29



DECEMBER 2021

I want to say THANK YOU to whoever decided to

purchase the wonderbook chapter books!!!! They

are a blessing to kids with dyslexia who struggle

getting through a good chapter book! My sweet Son

Brock has been hooked on reading every

wonderbook in the KDL system.

I was helping this regular patron Chad (who is

always so sweet and kind) with his hot spot over the

phone today in PSD. When we finally got it working

he was super excited and said "Sydney, thank you

for being my genie and making my wish come true!"

As if that wasn't already the nicest thing, at the end

of our phone call, he said "Hey Sydney, can I ask for

my other two wishes to be granted today too"? I

responded with "Oh, wow, I will try my best to help

them come true... What are they Chad"? He

responded with "Well, for my second wish I wish for

you to have a great day. For my third wish, I wish

that you have a great rest of your week." I told him

his second wish already came true because I got to

talk to him and he really brightened my day. What a

guy, Chad is the best!

 

Service + Meeting Center

Walker Branch
The best sound bite that was overheard in the Kids

area this week was a little boy talking to his mom. He

asked her "Why can't I just come here in my under

ware?" Somebody wants to make the library their

second home and feels pretty comfortable here.

During a recent Monday evening family storytime I

had a young mom approach me at the desk

expressing how much she appreciated this program

with "Miss Chellea". She has a 4 year old special

needs son who, prior to this program, had never

experienced regular interactions with other children

or truly felt part of a group. She was thrilled to see his

growing love of storytime and attachment to the

other children. She was so grateful to Chellea for

facilitating this and making everyone there feel like

part of a Monday night family. This mom is EAGERLY

awaiting the new year so that little Jackson can

resume his Monday night routine with his buddies

and Miss Chellea😊.

A patron was picking up his hotspot and thanked us

for being such a great library. He was amazed at what

we offer. He said that people don't even realize how

lucky they are to have access to our system. I

responded that I was truly grateful to hear him say

that and thanked him for supporting us.

Tyrone Township Branch Patron writes: I had the privilege of assisting a

patron with a trickier-than-usual print job (color,

two-sided, multiple pages etc). When we finished she

opened her coin purse and asked what she owed.

When I told her KDL is offering free printing, she

teared up and told me that while she doesn't love

paying taxes, the library has always been a

wonderful resource for her and for our community

and that she is so proud we are here. Our interaction

warmed my heart and I wanted to pass her gratitude

for KDL along to you.

30



Katie Kudos 
WINNERS FOR DECEMBER 2021

KEVIN KAMMERAAD 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

NOMINATED BY SARAH PROANO

HELPFUL

BECAUSE..."When you take on a project, you

make sure to listen to all the voices and make

them shine. Your willingness to go the extra

mile and the kindness you share, make our

teamwork so easy. I appreciate all your efforts,

that are many indeed."

AND 
NOMINATED BY HANNAH LEWIS

AUTHENTIC

BECAUSE..."Kevin has been kind, creative, and

supportive to me as a new member of the team.

I'm thankful for his presence."

AND 
NOMINATED BY DAVID SPECHT

HELPFUL

BECAUSE... "I'm currently working with the

folks at ROC to pull together a last-minute

video to solicit donations to a project and

unfortunately am forced to quarantine as my

wife has COVID. I asked Kevin if he could step in

as cameraman and drive out to ROC to capture

multiple interviews and programs throughout

this week. Without hesitation, he offered his

help and made my life much easier. You really

saved the day, Kevin! I'm not surprised one bit

though. Thank you."

SETH HOEKSTRA - COLLECTIONS SERVICES

NOMINATED BY JESSINE VAN LOPIK

POSITIVE 

BECAUSE..."Delivery is a very physically demanding task,

which takes up to four hours out of one's regular day to

do, and Seth has been filling in for it a lot lately. Doing

extra shifts is kind of a necessary evil during the holidays

when a lot of people take time off, but he's always been

quick to jump in when we need an extra person. I know

the rest of the department would agree with me when I

say we all really appreciate his Positivity in taking on the

hard work so many more times than he's scheduled to

do. Thank you, Seth!"

MARGO BIRD - EAST GRAND RAPIDS

NOMINATED BY ANNA DYER

POSITIVE 

BECAUSE..."We have a young patron who likes to

rearrange our holds when he visits, and doesn't quite

understand why that's not helpful. Margo goes out of

her way to gently remind him where the DVD section is,

why he can't take holds from other people, and explain

our shelving to him. Margo is always patient, but she

has taken extra effort to both protect our procedures

and guide the patron in a compassionate way."

AND
NOMINATED BY KEEVA FILIPEK 

AUTHENTIC

BECAUSE... "We have a young patron who likes to

"shop" and rearrange our holds for other patrons, and

he doesn't quite understand why that is not helpful for

the other patrons who are looking for their holds when

they arrive. Margo has made the effort to patiently

explain to him why we need to focus on leaving the

holds in alphabetical order for the other patrons. She

always does this in a very kind, consistent, and

approachable way!!"

31



Upcoming Meetings
+ Dates of Interest

Upcoming Meetings 

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, February 17, 2022
at 4:30 PM 
 KDL Cascade Branch 

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, March 17, 2022 
 4:30 PM 
 KDL Service + Meeting Center

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, April 21,  2022
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Dates of Interest

Other Meetings 

KDL Pension Meeting

February 16, 2022

1:00 PM 

KDL Service + Meeting Center

PLA 2022 Conference 

March 23-25, 2022

Portland, OR

ALA Annual Conference 

June 23-28, 2022

Washington, DC 

32



NEW
!

DECEMBER�2021

MONTHLY�PROJECT�REPORT

Projects in approval queue

Declined

New projects approved

13
2

0
Active Approved  

Projects

At risk—budget, scope, timelineOn track

Paused/cancelled—being redefined or stopped

NEW
!

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: 12.31.22

EDI�Collection�Audit�+�Tagging�(Phase�2)�

Completed goals of what is now known as Phase 1 of the EDI Collection Audit + Tagging project included
purchasing a collection audit from Ingram and identifying areas where the current collection was
deficient or otherwise lacking in EDI categories, tagging all books based on Ingram's broad categories 
 plus an additional set that the EDI workgroup developed, and creating a regular report for materials
tags to ensure a well-balanced collection, among others. With the process now established and the
Adult Fiction sample collection complete, Phase 1 Project Lead Samantha Hodge has passed the baton
on to Phase 2 Project Lead Tammy Schneider. Deliverables of Phase 2 include establishing a tag set for
Youth and Teen materials that is comparable to the Adult Fiction tag set and getting the entire KDL
collection tagged in full. This project will also tag the Nonfiction collection based on BISAC categories.

Project Lead: Brad Baker
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 12.29.21
Due Date: 04.30.22

 

This project proposes a series of traveling exhibits that can be displayed at four KDL branches (Amy Van
Andel, East Grand Rapids, Grandville, and Kentwood) with available public exhibition space. These
exhibits will feature either artists from major KDL projects like Write Michigan and the Kaleidoscope or
major historical/cultural narratives in partnership with organizations like the African American History
Museum, GR Public Museum and GVSU, among others. The first exhibit, Rediscover Grand Rapids, will
take place at the EGR branch. Pamela VanderPloeg, architectural researcher, author and curator of
ArchitectureGrandRapids.org., takes patrons on a photo journey through Grand Rapids’ vibrant
downtown streets sharing stories of the beautiful, historic buildings and contemporary architecture at
the heart of the city's center. This project is intended to stimulate new visitor traffic in the branches and
will require no additional work for branch staff. As part of this project's deliverables,  three exhibit
"runs" are scheduled to be completed throughout 2022, after which continuation into 2023 will be
evaluated after considering community feedback and other data.

Traveling�Exhibits

33



Circulation�Moonshot:�Weeding�Standards
Project Lead: Liz Guarino
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

 

Data gathering concluded December 31. So far, the Rockford branch is weeding roughly an additional
100 items per week by using the "Weed At Check In" method, while also completing weeding via regular
paging lists. The Plainfield branch team is also adapting well to the new process, with over 700 items
weeded at check-in during the first week of the pilot and a majority of items being weeded through this
process. By running pilots at both of these branches, staff ultimately discovered that we don't need to
set AV materials and other media aside for later review. Instead, such materials can be reviewed
immediately, thereby increasing the ultimate efficiency of the new process. These new processes will
be rolled out at the Englehardt branch on January 17 with a kickoff meeting scheduled for January 11. 

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: 03.31.22

Though startup slowed for the holidays, Project Lead Tammy Schneider met with the PMO for a pre-
kickoff meeting in December, wherein team members and additional project expectations were
verified. Regular meetings of the project team are set to begin mid-January.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Youth�+�Teen�CORE�Collection

Project Lead: Morgan Hanks
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: 03.31.22

As staff explore the software and get ready for in-branch implementation, the project team has
identified a few enhancements they would like to explore beforehand, such as ways to make the overall
user experience more mobile-friendly and ways to provide more obvious alerts and notifications for a
multi-tasking library worker. Additionally, the team is seizing all opportunities to observe how staff are
using the software before launch.

Curbside�Texting�+�Interactive�Voice�Response�(IVR)

Project Lead: TBD
Status: PAUSED

 

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

 The project is on a short pause in order to re-assess project leadership and manager buy-in after the
departure of Project Lead Alantha Mansberger shortly after the departure of the project sponsor, Carrie
Wilson. Information sessions to ensure buy-in with KDL's changing philosophy around displays and
circulation are also being discussed as next steps.  

Circulation�Moonshot:�Displays�+�Merchandising

Project Lead: Samantha Hodge
Status: Completed

 

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: 12.31.21

EDI�Collection�Audit�+�Tagging�(Phase�1)�

Please see New Project update above re: EDI Collection Audit + Tagging (Phase 2).

34



Project Lead: Remington Steed
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 11.29.21
Due Date: 02.28.22

 

In December, the project team attended a live demo of the BiblioApps product in order to become more
familiar with the product and identify the "must-have features" for the KDL iteration. The project team
will meet again in January to discuss and further evaluate planned and existing features of the app. If
the app is ultimately deemed favorable, then implementation will begin sometime in February.

KDL�Mobile�App

Project Lead: David Specht
Status: Completed

 

Approval Date: 03.31.21
Due Date: new due date of 11.30.21

 As of the new year, KDL Vibes is LIVE and has officially launched to the public! Marketing
Communications Specialist Katie Zuidema has done superb work with sending out press releases and
other marketing materials, and Project Lead David Specht has given multiple interviews on TV, radio
and web/print articles. Word is getting out! The project team will continue to meet regularly as they
maintain this service as part of KDL's regular offerings. This includes assembling a new panel of jurors
and preparing for the next open submission period in order to keep the service fresh. The project team
is satisfied with the success of the project and even more satisfied to be LIVE!

MUSICat�/�KDL�Vibes

Printer maintenance will continue to be a part of the department's regular work, but the specific goals
of this project, which included finding a new printer management partner, installing the printers, and
providing initial staff training, are now officially complete.

New�Printers�and�Print�Management�Service
Project Lead: Kurt Stevens
Status: Completed

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: new date of 10.20.2021

Rehmann�-�Finance�Department�Audit
Project Lead: Kim Lindsay
Status: At Risk - Timeline

 

Approval Date: 11.02.20
Due Date: new due date 05.31.21

 

All efficiency updates have been completed for KDL's internal purchasing software (Microix) and
updated approval hierarchies and purchasing thresholds were implemented with the start of the new
year. As of this report, the Microix system now mirrors Finance's updated chart of accounts. Remaining
punch list items and project deliverables will be completed throughout the spring.

Project Lead: Shelley Roossien
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 08.18.21
Due Date: 01.15.22

 

Filming of all sensory storytimes is now complete, and with great success. The project team and all
associated youth librarians have now completed six full-length storytimes and 29 segments for eager
viewers to enjoy. In the meantime, David Specht is now hard at work editing the first full-length
storytime video. To give him ample time to finish, project work will continue past this project's
originally projected due date. Nevertheless, marketing materials are in the works, including a press
release and a highlight column in KDL's Kaleidoscope. Team members are also compiling a parent
resource guide to be included with the videos on the KDL website. This will include enrichment
activities, instructions for making sensory tools, and a sensory friendly recommended reading list.

Streaming�Sensory�Storytimes

35



Project Lead: Missy Lancaster
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 09.23.21
Due Date: 11.30.22

TMC Furniture began developing concept drawings based on custom element and theme ideas toward
the end of the new year, after which they will finalize preliminary concept sketches to send to the
project team for consideration. TMC also consolidated all ideas for the play tables and are moving into
production for a sample prototype. Once completed, members of the project team will visit their
factory to give feedback and play with the table before it goes into production. Based on branch
feedback, TMC will be manufacturing 10 kitchens and 17 play tables (5 large, 9 medium, 3 small), but
these are just preliminary estimates until the TMC team can work out the exact cost of these custom
elements. Due to the volatile cost of materials, the project team will be keeping a close eye on budget
and execution in order to keep this project on track and within budget.

Systemwide�WonderKnook�Refresh

36



BUILDING�PROJECTS

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster
Status: At Risk - Timeline

 

Approval Date: 2020
Due Date: new due date of 04.30.22

 Construction is now complete in all employee areas, though furniture is unfortunately on backorder for
the lobby, Finance department, HR department, IT department, etc. The estimated date of arrival for
these pieces is now January 28; however, it should be noted that due to supply chain issues this date
remains unreliable. Construction for the Bruursema Board Room, Corner Conference Room, HR
Conference Room and Learning Lab will begin in February. The plan is to use the same carpet, paint and
trim as the rest of the newly redone employee spaces. 

Service�+�Meeting�Center

Project Lead: Jennifer German
Status: N/A

 The Rockford’s Got Talent show, the first fundraiser for the Krause Memorial Branch expansion, will take
place on Saturday, January 8, 2022. The Library is hopeful for an enthusiastic turnout.

Krause�Memorial
Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Project Lead: Craig Buno
Status: N/A

 Fishbeck will be presenting plans for the expanded library branch, community center and Walker Ice
and Fitness Center to the Walker City Commission on Monday, January 10. There, Fishbeck will give an
overview of how they have arrived at the current concept and what factors went into these conceptual
decisions, such as projected population growth and projected price points.

Walker
Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

 

37



    

 

 

  

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 
 

 

 

 

 

38



     

 

    

 

  

 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

39



     

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40

https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C759607
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/603993174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/746972174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/647898174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C757415
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C757415
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6080647
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6079650
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5305833
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/1243691
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6197157
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6197157
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C816741
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C815039
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C801271
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C797703
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C234464
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C647898
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C238097
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/603993174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C540119
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C816741
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C826866
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C855362
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C855357
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C815039
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5808556
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5949982
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6225852
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6197160
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5800191
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5800191


  
STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 

January 2022 
 

 

 

 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Shelver – Alpine / Tyrone Twp. Part-time 

Regional Manager In-Training – Plainfield / Comstock Park Temporary 

Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Nelson Twp. / Krause Memorial Part-time 

Shelver – Cascade Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood (2 positions) Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Cascade Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Englehardt  Full-time 

Shelver - Grandville Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Walker Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Cascade Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Grandville Part-time 

 
 
 
 

NEW HIRES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Alicia Peckham Shelver – Kentwood December 27 

Ranya Hwail Shelver – Cascade December 27 

Shea Crampton Shelver – Cascade December 27 

Erin Antes Branch Librarian – Wyoming January 10 

Amy Patnaude Shelver – Cascade January 10 

Rebecca Maupin Assistant Branch Librarian – Amy Van Andel / Ada January 10 

Rachel McCay Shelver – Plainfield January 10 

Sarah Fontaine Assistant Branch Librarian – Gaines Twp. January 10 

Daniel Phillips Assistant Branch Librarian – Englehardt January 10 

Jennifer Bell Shelver – Plainfield January 10 

Jamerson Ries Shelver – Alto January 10 

41



 

 
 

 
 

 

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Debra Beard Assistant Branch Librarian Sub December 1 

Amruta More Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood December 19 

Grace Vereecken Shelver – Alpine / Tyrone Twp. January 7 

Andrew Parling Branch Librarian - Wyoming February 11 

Chris Straw Branch Librarian – Englehardt February 28 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Chris Lohman 
Branch Librarian – Gaines 
Twp. 

Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

December 20 

Michelle Toren Branch Librarian – Walker 
Branch Librarian – Gaines 
Twp. 

December 27 

Scott Ninemeier 
Regional Manager I – 
Plainfield/Comstock Park 

Regional Manager I – East 
Grand Rapids/Ada 

January 1 

Mary Valentime 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– East Grand Rapids 

Patron Services Associate – 
Service Center 

January 3 

Megan Russ 
Assistant Branch Librarian - 
Grandville 

Branch Librarian – Grandville January 3 

Jackie Richards 
Assistant Branch Librarian - 
Kentwood 

Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

January 3 

Ben Siebert 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– East Grand Rapids 

Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

January 3 

Aislynn Wallace 
Branch Librarian – 
Cascade 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Cascade 

January 10 

Tammy Pulaski 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
East Grand Rapids 

January 10 

Anh-Thu Vong Shelver – Cascade 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
East Grand Rapids 

January 10 

Henry Hong Shelver – Cascade 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood 

January 10 

Heather Blake Shelver - Grandville 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Grandville 

January 10 

Cody Ketchum Shelver – Cascade 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood 

January 10 

Alantha Mansberger 
Library Assistant - 
Englehardt 

Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

January 15 

Dawn Lewis 
Regional Manager I – East 
Grand Rapids / Ada 

Manager Sub January 15 

Mariely Velazquez 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Gaines Twp. 

Branch Librarian – Wyoming January 24 

42



 
 

EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(FEBRUARY) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Cheryl Cammenga Kentwood / Gaines Twp. 42 years 

Lynda Austin Englehardt 18 years 

Megan Versluis Collection Services 14 years 

Nicole Seif Cascade 7 years 

Anna-Marie Boss Wyoming 6 years 

Tina Cornwell Krause Memorial 6 years 

David Specht Marketing/Communications 6 years 

Kathleen Mitchell Tyrone Twp. 5 years 

Gayle Poertner Sub Pool 5 years 

Jessine Van Lopik Collection Services 4 years 

Shannon Cameron Sub Pool 1 year 

Emily Dao Caledonia 1 year 

Morgan Shepard Kentwood  1 year 

 

43



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE - 2021 

*BOARD PARTICIPATION VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE  

 

 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE 

    

    

    

     

 

 
SHIRLEY 

BRUURSEMA 

ANDREW 

ERLEWEIN 

SHERI 

GILREATH-

WATTS 

PETER 

DYKHUIS 

 

CHARLES 

MYERS 
TOM 

NOREEN 

 

CAITIE S. 

OLIVER 
PENNY 

WELLER 

        

        

        

        

   *  *   

      *  

        

     * *  

        

        

    *    

        

        

44



45



CONTRACTS OF PUBLIC SERVANTS WITH PUBLIC ENTITIES
Act 317 of 1968

AN ACT relating to the conduct of public servants in respect to governmental decisions and contracts with
public entities; to provide penalties for the violation of this act; to repeal certain acts and parts of acts; and to
validate certain contracts.

History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968;Am. 1984, Act 81, Imd. Eff. Apr. 18, 1984.

The People of the State of Michigan enact:

15.321 Public servants, contracts with public entities; definitions.
Sec. 1. As used in this act:
(a) "Public servant" includes all persons serving any public entity, except members of the legislature and

state officers who are within the provisions of section 10 of article 4 of the state constitution as implemented
by legislative act.

(b) "Public entity" means the state including all agencies thereof, any public body corporate within the
state, including all agencies thereof, or any non-incorporated public body within the state of whatever nature,
including all agencies thereof.

History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.322 Public servant; soliciting, negotiating, renegotiating, approving, or representing a
party to a contract with public entity prohibited.
Sec. 2. (1) Except as provided in sections 3 and 3a, a public servant shall not be a party, directly or

indirectly, to any contract between himself or herself and the public entity of which he or she is an officer or
employee.

(2) Except as provided in section 3, a public servant shall not directly or indirectly solicit any contract
between the public entity of which he or she is an officer or employee and any of the following:

(a) Him or herself.
(b) Any firm, meaning a co-partnership or other unincorporated association, of which he or she is a partner,

member, or employee.
(c) Any private corporation in which he or she is a stockholder owning more than 1% of the total

outstanding stock of any class if the stock is not listed on a stock exchange, or stock with a present total
market value in excess of $25,000.00 if the stock is listed on a stock exchange or of which he or she is a
director, officer, or employee.

(d) Any trust of which he or she is a beneficiary or trustee.
(3) In regard to a contract described in subsection (2), a public servant shall not do either of the following:
(a) Take any part in the negotiations for such a contract or the renegotiation or amendment of the contract,

or in the approval of the contract.
(b) Represent either party in the transaction.
History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968;Am. 1992, Act 9, Imd. Eff. Mar. 10, 1992.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.323 Applicability of MCL 15.322 to public servants; requirements of contract; making or
participating in governmental decision; counting members for purposes of quorum;
voting; affidavit; “governmental decision” defined.
Sec. 3. (1) Section 2 does not apply to either of the following:
(a) A public servant who is paid for working an average of 25 hours per week or less for a public entity.
(b) A public servant who is an employee of a public community college, junior college, or state college or

university.
(2) A contract as defined in and limited by section 2 involving a public entity and a public servant

described in subsection (1) shall meet all of the following requirements:
(a) The public servant promptly discloses any pecuniary interest in the contract to the official body that has

Rendered Friday, January 3, 2020 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 146 of 2019

 Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

46



power to approve the contract, which disclosure shall be made a matter of record in its official proceedings.
Unless the public servant making the disclosure will directly benefit from the contract in an amount less than
$250.00 and less than 5% of the public cost of the contract and the public servant files a sworn affidavit to
that effect with the official body or the contract is for emergency repairs or services, the disclosure shall be
made in either of the following manners:

(i) The public servant promptly discloses in writing to the presiding officer, or if the presiding officer is the
public servant who is a party to the contract, to the clerk, the pecuniary interest in the contract at least 7 days
prior to the meeting at which a vote will be taken. The disclosure shall be made public in the same manner as
a public meeting notice.

(ii) The public servant discloses the pecuniary interest at a public meeting of the official body. The vote
shall be taken at a meeting of the official body held at least 7 days after the meeting at which the disclosure is
made. If the amount of the direct benefit to the public servant is more than $5,000.00, disclosure must be
made as provided under this subparagraph.

(b) The contract is approved by a vote of not less than 2/3 of the full membership of the approving body in
open session without the vote of the public servant making the disclosure.

(c) The official body discloses the following summary information in its official minutes:
(i) The name of each party involved in the contract.
(ii) The terms of the contract, including duration, financial consideration between parties, facilities or

services of the public entity included in the contract, and the nature and degree of assignment of employees of
the public entity for fulfillment of the contract.

(iii) The nature of any pecuniary interest.
(3) This section and section 2 do not prevent a public servant from making or participating in making a

governmental decision to the extent that the public servant's participation is required by law. If 2/3 of the
members are not eligible under this act to vote on a contract or to constitute a quorum, a member may be
counted for purposes of a quorum and may vote on the contract if the member will directly benefit from the
contract in an amount less than $250.00 and less than 5% of the public cost of the contract and the member
files a sworn affidavit to that effect with the official body. The affidavit shall be made a part of the public
record of the official proceedings. As used in this subsection, "governmental decision" means a determination,
action, vote, or disposition upon a motion, proposal, recommendation, resolution, ordinance, order, or
measure on which a vote by members of a local legislative or governing body of a public entity is required
and by which a public body effectuates or formulates public policy.

History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968;Am. 1981, Act 100, Imd. Eff. July 15, 1981;Am. 1982, Act 207, Imd. Eff. July 1,
1982;Am. 1984, Act 81, Imd. Eff. Apr. 18, 1984;Am. 1984, Act 184, Imd. Eff. July 3, 1984;Am. 1997, Act 145, Eff. Mar. 2, 1998
.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.323a Construction of MCL 15.322.
Sec. 3a. Section 2 shall not be construed to do any of the following:
(a) Prohibit public servants of a city, village, township, or county with a population of less than 25,000

from serving, with or without compensation, as emergency medical services personnel as defined in section
20904 of the public health code, 1978 PA 368, MCL 333.20904.

(b) Prohibit public servants of a city, village, township, or county with a population of less than 25,000
from serving, with or without compensation, as a firefighter in that city, village, township, or county if that
firefighter is not any of the following:

(i) A full-time firefighter.
(ii) A fire chief.
(iii) A person who negotiates with the city, village, township, or county on behalf of the firefighters.
(c) Limit the authority of the governing body of a city, village, township, or county with a population of

less than 25,000 to authorize a public servant to perform, with or without compensation, other additional
services for the unit of local government.

(d) Prohibit public servants of this state from purchasing at a tax sale lands returned as delinquent for taxes
under the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155, unless otherwise prohibited by the
rules of the Michigan civil service commission or the department or agency of which that public servant is an
employee.

(e) Prohibit a superintendent of an intermediate school district from serving simultaneously as

Rendered Friday, January 3, 2020 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 146 of 2019

 Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

47



superintendent of a local school district, or prohibit an intermediate school district from contracting with
another person to serve as superintendent of a local school district, even if the local school district is a
constituent district of the intermediate school district. As used in this subdivision, "constituent district" means
that term as defined in section 3 of the revised school code, 1976 PA 451, MCL 380.3.

History: Add. 1992, Act 9, Imd. Eff. Mar. 10, 1992;Am. 1996, Act 203, Imd. Eff. May 17, 1996;Am. 2011, Act 106, Imd. Eff.
July 19, 2011.

15.324 Public servants; contracts excepted; violation as felony.
Sec. 4. (1) The prohibitions of section 2 shall not apply to any of the following:
(a) Contracts between public entities.
(b) Contracts awarded to the lowest qualified bidder, other than a public servant, upon receipt of sealed

bids pursuant to a published notice. Except as authorized by law, the notice shall not bar any qualified person,
firm, corporation, or trust from bidding. This subsection shall not apply to amendments or renegotiations of a
contract nor to additional payments made under a contract which were not authorized by the contract at the
time of award.

(c) Contracts for public utility services where the rates are regulated by the state or federal government.
(d) Contracts to purchase residential property. A public servant of a city or village may purchase 1 to 4

parcels not less than 18 months between each purchase. This subdivision does not apply to public servants of
a city or village who have been appointed or elected to their position or whose employment responsibilities
include the purchase or selling of property for the city or village. This subdivision shall apply only to a city or
village that has adopted an ethics ordinance which was in effect at the time the residential property was
purchased.

(2) A person that violates subsection (1)(d) is guilty of a felony punishable by imprisonment for not more
than 1 year or a fine of not less than $1,000.00 or more than 3 times the value of the property purchased.

History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968;Am. 2005, Act 198, Imd. Eff. Nov. 9, 2005.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.325 Public servants, voidability of contracts; procedure, knowledge, limitation,
reimbursement, settlements, evidences of indebtedness.
Sec. 5. (1) This act is aimed to prevent public servants from engaging in certain activities and is not

intended to penalize innocent persons. Therefore, no contract shall be absolutely void by reason of this act.
Contracts involving prohibited activities on the part of public servants shall be voidable only by decree of a
court of proper jurisdiction in an action by the public entity, which is a party thereto, as to any person, firm,
corporation or trust that entered into the contract or took any assignment thereof, with actual knowledge of the
prohibited activity. In the case of the corporation, the actual knowledge must be that of a person or body
finally approving the contract for the corporation. All actions to avoid any contract hereunder shall be brought
within 1 year after discovery of circumstances suggesting a violation of this act. In order to meet the ends of
justice any such decree shall provide for the reimbursement of any person, firm, corporation or trust for the
reasonable value of all moneys, goods, materials, labor or services furnished under the contract, to the extent
that the public entity has benefited thereby. This provision shall not prohibit the parties from arriving at an
amicable settlement.

(2) Negotiable and nonnegotiable bonds, notes or evidences of indebtedness, whether heretofore or
hereafter issued, in the hands of purchasers for value, shall not be void or voidable by reason of this act or of
any previous statute, charter or rule of law.

History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.326 Public servants, validity of existing contracts.
Sec. 6. If any public entity has, prior to the effective date of this act, entered into any contract under which

moneys, goods, materials, labor or services have been actually received by the public entity, which was void
or voidable under any act, charter or rule of law because of a conflict of interest on the part of a public servant
at the time of the execution thereof, such contract shall be fully enforceable notwithstanding such conflict of
interest, by any party thereto other than such public servant.

Rendered Friday, January 3, 2020 Page 3 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 146 of 2019

 Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

48



History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.327 Penalty for violation.
Sec. 7. Any person violating the provisions of this act is guilty of a misdemeanor.
History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.328 Other laws superseded; local ordinances.
Sec. 8. It is the intention that this act shall constitute the sole law in this state and shall supersede all other

acts in respect to conflicts of interest relative to public contracts, involving public servants other than
members of the legislature and state officers, including but not limited to section 30 of 1851 PA 156, MCL
46.30. This act does not prohibit a unit of local government from adopting an ordinance or enforcing an
existing ordinance relating to conflict of interest in subjects other than public contracts involving public
servants.

History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968;Am. 1997, Act 145, Eff. Mar. 2, 1998.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.329 Repeal.
Sec. 9. The following acts and parts of acts are repealed:

  

Year
of
act   

Public
Act
No.   

Section
numbers  

Compiled
Law

sections
(1948)

  
1895  3   6 of

chapter
5

  65.6

  
1895  215   16 of

chapter
8

  88.16

  1931  328   122   750.122

  1955  269   969   340.969

  1966  317       15.161 to
15.172

History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

15.330 Effective date.
Sec. 10. This act shall take effect September 1, 1968.
History: 1968, Act 317, Eff. Sept. 1, 1968.

Compiler's note: Section 191 of Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 repealed MCL 4.401 to 4.410, 168.901 to 168.929, 15.321 to
15.330, 15.301 to 15.310, and 15.341 to 15.348. The Michigan Supreme Court, however, in Advisory Opinion on Constitutionality of
1975 PA 227, 396 Mich. 123, 240 N.W.2d 193 (1976), held Act 227 of the Public Acts of 1975 unconstitutional for being in violation of
Mich. Const., Art. 4, § 24.

Rendered Friday, January 3, 2020 Page 4 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 146 of 2019

 Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

49



 

 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT 
 
 
 
I have read and understand the law pertaining to conflicts of interest (Michigan Compiled Laws 
15.321 et seq.), which was provided to me. There are no present or potential future conflicts of 
interest other than those listed below. I have and will continue to observe the law carefully 
including, without limitation, the obligation to promptly disclose any pecuniary interest in a 
contract to be considered by the Board.  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________ ______________________ 

Signature              Date 
 

________________________________________________  
Printed Name      
 

 
 
D I S C L O S U R E S :  (Below, indicate “none” if applicable or give a brief explanation of the conflict.) 

50

http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-Act-317-of-1968
http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-Act-317-of-1968


51



52



  

 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

CODE OF ETHICS 
 
 
I have read the Kent District Library Board of Trustees Code of Ethics (KDL Policy 5.4), which was 
provided to me.  I understand that the purposes of this code are to increase the effectiveness of 
the library’s decision-making process, to enable library constituents to have confidence in the 
library’s integrity, and to further library goals.  
 
I understand that this code is meant to be a supplement to good judgment, and I will respect its 
spirit as well as its wording. 

 
 
________________________________________________ ______________________ 

Signature              Date 
 

________________________________________________  
Printed Name      

 
 

53



  

 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

CREDIT CARD AGREEMENT  
 

 

54



POLICY MANUAL 
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



POLICY MANUAL  
2 

 

 

 

 

 BEHAVIOR 

56



POLICY MANUAL  
3 

 

 

 
 

57



POLICY MANUAL  
4 

 

PHOTOGRAPHY + VIDEOGRAPHY RECORDING POLICY 

1. 

2. 

2.3.

3.4.

4.5.

 
 
 
 
 
Changes were made due to: Randy Goble, Director of engagement was contacted to explain the concern with 
the policy around social media. The current policy refers to “casual amateur photography,” therefore a drafted 
revision encompasses other types of recording and also refer to “Library Patrons Responsibilities” to make sure 
that harassment is clearly prohibited. 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Right:  0", Line spacing:

 single,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font color: Dark Red

58



POLICY MANUAL  
5 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

LIBRARY PATRON RESPONSIBILITIES

59



 

 

60



 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



 3 

 

62



 4 
63



64



RESOLUTION 
First 2022 Budget Amendment 

 

 

 MEETING INFORMATION 

A regular meeting of the Library Board (the “Board”) of the Kent District Library (the “Library”) was held 
at the Kent District Library Service & Meeting Center on January 20, 2022 at 4:30 PM. 

The meeting was called to order by . 

PRESENT:____________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:        __________________________________________________________________________ 

 RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Foster Swift Collins & Smith PC currently bills the Library $210 per hour and has not 

increased the hourly billing rate since 2020; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

 

The Board hereby approves and adopts the proposed Foster Swift Collins & Smith PC hourly billing 

rate attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted on a motion made by _____________________and 

seconded by ________________________.  Upon roll call vote, the following voted aye: ________.  The 

following voted nay: _______. The Chair declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted 

on the 20th day of January 2022. 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board 

of Trustees of the Kent District Library, County of Kent, Michigan, at a regular meeting held on March 

19, 2020, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant 

to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and 

that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by 

said Act. 

Dated:  January 20, 2022 

 

     Charles Myers, KDL Board Chair              Sheri Gilreath-Watts, KDL Board Secretary  

65



RESOLUTION 
Schools & Libraries Universal Services (eRate) for 2021-2022 

 
 

 MEETING INFORMATION 

A regular meeting of the Library Board (the “Board”) of the Kent District Library (the “Library”) was held 
at the Kent District Library – Service Center, on January 20, 2022, at 4:30 PM. 

The meeting was called to order by . 

PRESENT:____________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:        __________________________________________________________________________ 

 RESOLUTION 
With the assistance of Kellogg & Sovereign Consulting (E-Rate Advisors), KDL has filed FCC Form 471, Schools and 

Libraries Universal Service Program Services Ordered and Certification Form for the services and/or products as 

detailed in the table below titled, “E-Rate Requests, Funding Year for 07/01/2021-06/30/2022.  

 

Be it resolved that the governing board for Kent District Library 

 

1. Vote to approve or disapprove Resolution for Schools and Libraries Universal Services (E-Rate) 

for 2021-2022. This resolution authorizes filing of the form 471 applications for funding year 

2021-2022 and the payment of the applicant’s share upon approval of funding and receipt of 

services.  

 

2. Authorizes the filing of FCC Form 471, Schools and Libraries Universal Service Program Services 

Ordered and Certification Form for the services and/or products as detailed in the attached 

report, “E-Rate Requests, FY 2022”, for the fiscal year 07/01/2021-06/30/2022.  

 

3. Authorizes payment of the applicant’s share subject to the following conditions: 

(1) approval of funding of the discounted portion by the Schools and Libraries Division (SLD) of 

the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) and 

(2) receipt of services during the fiscal year 07/01/2021-06/30/2022.  

 

Application # Pre-Discount 
Amount 

E-Rate Amount Applicant’s 
Share 

211012456 $857,551.92 $771,796.73 $85,755.19 

202107432 $115,467.50 $115,467.50 $0 

Totals $973,019.42 $887,264.23 $85,755.19 

 

 

  

66



E-Rate Requests, Funding Year for 07/01/2021 - 06/30/2022 

 

Applicant Name: KENT DISTRICT LIBRARY 

Billed Entity #: 131573 

 

 
The Board hereby approves and adopts the tentative Schools & Libraries Universal Services (e-rate) 

for 2021-2022. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted on a motion made by _____________________and 

seconded by ______________________.  Upon roll call vote, the following voted aye: _______.  The 

following voted nay: _____. The Chair declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted on 

the 20th of January 20, 2022. 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

67



 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board 

of Trustees of the Kent District Library, County of Kent, Michigan, at a regular meeting held on May 20 

2021 and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to 

and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and 

that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by 

said Act. 

Dated: January 20, 2022 

 

Charles Myers, KDL Board Chair         Sheri Gilreath-Watts, KDL Board Secretary  

68



STRATEGIC 
PLAN
2021-2023
F O U R T H  Q U A R T E R  U P D A T E
2 0 2 1

69



Eq
ui

ty
, D

iv
er

si
ty

, I
nc

lu
si

on
 (E

DI
)

Align all library services, staffing
makeup and partnerships to be
reflective and inclusive of the 

diverse communities 
we serve.

Develop a plan to increase staff Cultural Intelligence (CQ) by first determining
how to measure it, establishing a baseline and setting a target by May 2021. 

2021-2023 Strategic Goal:

2021 Initiative #1

2021 Q4 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

The strategic plan initiative to develop the training plan for CQ training has been
completed, and the Paradigm trainings will continue quarterly throughout 2022. The
continuation of these trainings is a featured 2022 strategic initiative under the EDI
pillar.

Completion rates are reported as a strategic KPI (key performance indicator)
quarterly. After considering turnover and staff on approved leaves, 100% staff
completion was determined to not be a feasible goal. Factoring in KDL's turnover rate
of approximately 12%, the new quarterly goal will be 88% to reflect these factors. In
the last scheduled training of 2021, KDL reached 84% for total completion rates, which
was just 4% shy of total goals. The most recent module was sent out by the Training
Manager on January 10 and is due March 31. All together, this module will take staff 90
minutes to complete. KDL's Training Manger will send out progress reports so that
managers know who they may need to follow up with to get their training complete. 

70



Eq
ui

ty
, D

iv
er

si
ty

, I
nc

lu
si

on
 (E

DI
)

The 2021 goal of establishing a diversity plan for evaluating materials to ensure they
are reflective of the community has been completed. The plan for how to tag all
materials, new and existing, is in motion and was tested successfully with the Adult
Fiction section. 

Completed goals of what is now known as Phase 1 of the EDI Collection Audit +
Tagging project included purchasing a collection audit from Ingram and identifying
areas where the current collection was deficient or otherwise lacking in EDI
categories, tagging all books based on Ingram's broad categories plus an additional
set that the EDI workgroup developed, and creating a regular report for material tags
to ensure a well-balanced collection, among others.

With the process now established and the Adult Fiction sample collection complete,
Phase 1 Project Lead Samantha Hodge has passed the baton on to Phase 2 Project
Lead Tammy Schneider. Deliverables of Phase 2 include establishing a tag set for
Youth and Teen materials that is comparable to the Adult Fiction tag set and getting
the entire KDL collection tagged in full. This project will also tag the Nonfiction
collection based on BISAC categories. This project will continue into 2022.

KDL continues to monitor what percentage of new materials qualify for a tag and will
slowly add completed collections until we are measuring and monitoring the
collection in total, not just new purchases. 

Align all library services, staffing
makeup and partnerships to be
reflective and inclusive of the 

diverse communities 
we serve.

By December 2021, develop a diversity plan for evaluating library materials to
ensure offerings are reflective of the community. 

2021-2023 Strategic Goal:

2021 Initiative #2

2021 Q4 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

71



En
ga

ge
m

en
t +

 S
er

vi
ce

Increase the value delivered to the
community by focusing on 

demonstrated needs. 

This strategic initiative was completed in August 2021 and future updates on this goal
will no longer be needed.

Develop a systematic process for identifying our communities’ unmet/emerging
needs by March 2021 with surveys completed by September.

2021-2023 Strategic Goal:

2021 Initiative #3

2021 Q4 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

72



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y

KDL completed the feasibility study and it was determined that the organization
should instead grow its endowment. A new goal has been created from this
initiative. All efforts toward establishing a 501(c)3 foundation will hereby stop.

Evaluate and streamline operational,
environmental, and fundraising

processes to ensure a 
sustainable library.

KDL's consulting relationship with Kennari ended in early November and they
presented KDL a case for support. The next steps will be taken on internally among
the Fund Development team to determine which accessibility-related projects qualify
for funding support through this avenue. 

2021 Initiative #4a

By the end of March 2021, complete a feasibility study to establish a 501(c)(3)
foundation to increase private donation funding to supplement tax support.

2021-2023 Strategic Goal:

2021 Initiative #4

2021 Q4 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

By the end of August 2021, work with Kennari Consulting to strategize how to grow
the KDL endowment and establish best practices and policies for endowment
donations.

On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

73



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y

Evaluate and streamline operational,
environmental, and fundraising

processes to ensure a 
sustainable library.

Displays and Merchandising  
Weeding Standards + Sustainable Partnerships 

In June 2021, KDL Leadership approved two new process improvement projects to
kick off Circulation Moonshot and meet this 2021 strategic initiative:

Displays and Merchandising  
Due to departures, this project requires a change in sponsorship and leadership and
an overview to ensure full management buy-in. The timeline may be impacted,
especially considering the continuation of furniture and supply delays and will be
reassessed at an upcoming quarterly manager meeting. 

Weeding Standards + Sustainable Partnerships 
Data gathering concluded December 31. So far, the Krause Memorial branch is
weeding roughly an additional 100 items per week by using the "Weed at Check-In"
method, while also completing weeding via regular paging lists. The Plainfield
Township branch team is also adapting well to the new process, with over 700 items
weeded at check-in based on condition during the first week of the pilot, and a
majority of items being weeded through this process. By running pilots at both of
these branches, staff ultimately discovered that we don't need to set AV materials and
other media aside for later review. Instead, such materials can be reviewed
immediately, thereby increasing the ultimate efficiency of the new process. These new
processes will be rolled out at the Engelhardt branch on January 17 with a kickoff
meeting scheduled for January 11. A schedule for the remaining branches will be
created and announced at the February All Manager meeting. 

Both of these projects will continue into 2022 through summer. Their status will
continue to be tracked on the monthly project report. 

Map, improve and refine two operational processes by December 2021.

2021-2023 Strategic Goal:

2021 Initiative #5

2021 Q4 Update

On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

74


	01.2022 KDL Board Packet Cover Page 
	01.20.2022 Board of Trustee Agenda 
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Agenda


	12.16.2021 - Board Meeting Minutes
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Minutes


	Unofficial Board Minutes 12-9-21
	December Financials
	Check Register - Board Report
	Voided Checks
	2021 December Director's Report (1)
	December 2021 Monthly Projects Report
	December 2021 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries Jan 2022
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	January 2022


	BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE- 2021
	Conflict of Interest 5.3
	Public Servant 15.321 et seq
	2022 Conflict of Interest Statement - Blank
	Code of Ethics 5.4
	2022 Code of Ethics Form - Blank
	2022 Credit Card Waiver - Blank
	01 January Packet KDL-Policy-Manual 4.3.1
	MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING Krause-Draft
	01 January 2022 Foster Swift Increase Rate
	01 January Packet - Resolution - Billing Rate Foster Swift Legal Services
	RESOLUTION
	First 2022 Budget Amendment

	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

	01 January Packet Resolution - Erate - 2022
	RESOLUTION
	Schools & Libraries Universal Services (eRate) for 2021-2022

	1. Vote to approve or disapprove Resolution for Schools and Libraries Universal Services (E-Rate) for 2021-2022. This resolution authorizes filing of the form 471 applications for funding year 2021-2022 and the payment of the applicant’s share upon ap...
	2. Authorizes the filing of FCC Form 471, Schools and Libraries Universal Service Program Services Ordered and Certification Form for the services and/or products as detailed in the attached report, “E-Rate Requests, FY 2022”, for the fiscal year 07/0...
	3. Authorizes payment of the applicant’s share subject to the following conditions:
	(1) approval of funding of the discounted portion by the Schools and Libraries Division (SLD) of the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) and
	(2) receipt of services during the fiscal year 07/01/2021-06/30/2022.

	Strategic Plan - Q4 Update



